

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS
AND PUBLIC MEETING
STATE OF NEBRASKA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (NDEQ)
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COUNCIL

Notice is hereby given pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stats. §81-1505(17), §84-907, and §84-1411, the Nebraska Environmental Quality Council (EQC) will hold a meeting and public hearings on April 3, 2019 beginning at 9:00 A.M. Central Time (CT) at the Cornhusker Hotel, 333 South 13th St., Lincoln, Nebraska. Preceding the hearings will be business items on the agenda. The hearings are scheduled to begin at 9:00 A.M. CT or as soon thereafter as can reasonably be heard. The purpose of the hearings is to take testimony and evidence about the proposed amendment of NDEQ regulations, as outlined in this notice.

The meeting agenda and a draft copy of the proposals scheduled for hearing are available at the NDEQ's Lincoln office, 1200 N St., Suite 400, Lincoln, NE and on the NDEQ website at <http://deq.ne.gov>. The meeting agenda and a draft copy of the proposed regulations scheduled for hearing are also available at the Office of the Secretary of State, Regulations Division, 1201 N St., Suite 120, Lincoln, NE, 68508. The description of the fiscal impact of the proposed regulations on state agencies, political subdivisions, or persons regulated is also available at these locations.

All interested persons may attend and testify orally or by written submission at the public hearing. Any person may provide advance notice of intent to testify by contacting Carla Felix, Hearing Officer, NDEQ, 1200 N St., Suite 400, P.O. Box 98922, Lincoln, NE 68509-8922. Unscheduled testimony will be heard following scheduled testimony. Interested persons may also submit written comments to Carla Felix prior to the hearing, which will be entered into the hearing record if received at the Lincoln office by 5:00 P.M. CT, April 2, 2019.

Please notify the NDEQ at least one week in advance of the EQC meeting if auxiliary aids or reasonable accommodations or alternate formats of materials are needed. Contact phone number is 402-471-2186. TDD users call 800-833-7352 and ask the relay operator to call us at 402-471-2186.

A public hearing will be held on the following:

1. Amendments to Title 129 – Nebraska Air Quality Regulations, Chapter 8. Change to Chapter 8 eliminates language referring to supersession of previously issued operating and construction permit to clarify such permits do not lapse when a subsequent operating permit is issued. The EQC will vote to adopt, amend or not approve the NDEQ proposal after hearing and considering all the testimony and written submissions.
2. Amendments to Title 117 – Nebraska Surface Water Quality Standards. These amendments are proposed as part of the State's triennial review of Water Quality

Standards, required by Section 303 of the Federal Clean Water Act. Changes in Chapter 1 revise and update definitions, and where applicable reference statutory citations. Changes in Chapter 2 revise, clarify, and update language; and propose procedures for application and granting a variance to water quality standards as authorized by new federal regulations established in 40 Code of Federal Regulations § 131.14. Changes to Chapter 4 revise and update water quality standards as described in the chapter. Changes to Chapter 5 update designated use classifications of certain streams in the Nemaha River Basin identified in the chapter; update key species codes for streams identified in the chapter; and remove illustrative basin maps from the chapter which will be made available on the department website. Changes to Chapter 6 clarify that point source discharges from livestock sources are prohibited; add fifteen lakes and reservoirs located in the Big Blue River Basin, the Middle Platte River Basin, the Missouri Tributaries River Basin, the Nemaha River Basin, the Niobrara River Basin, and the North Platte River Basin; and delete one lake that no longer exhibits the characteristics of a lake and is now covered by Chapter 7 wetlands requirements; and make other minor revisions and updates language. Changes to Chapter 7 revise and update key species; update and revise pollutants; and make other minor revisions and update language. Chapter 8 is proposed for deletion because it duplicates statutory language found in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 84-906(1) of the Administrative Procedure Act.

3. Amendments to Title 131 – Rules and Regulations for the Wastewater Treatment Facilities and Drinking Water Construction Assistance Programs. Changes to Chapter 1 add, revise, and update definitions, and where applicable reference statutory citations. Changes to Chapter 2 remove redundant and unnecessary requirements; include provisions on interest rates and administrative fees from Chapter 3; include provisions on emergency assistance from Chapter 3 and 9; include provisions on application denial from Chapter 7; add new provisions related to environmental assessments; include provisions on applications and general loan terms from Chapter 8; and rename chapter. Chapter 3 as it currently exists is deleted because the language on Intended Use Plan (IUP) and its required elements is duplicative of federal requirements or state statute. General requirements applicable to wastewater treatment projects, nonpoint and other projects, and public water system projects, currently found in Chapters 4, 5, and 6, have been included as provisions in renamed Chapter 3; and the existing Chapters 4, 5, and 6 are deleted. Chapter 7 is deleted because provisions relating to application denial are moved to Chapter 2 and remaining provisions are duplicative of federal IUP requirements. Chapter 8 is deleted because its provisions on applications and general loan terms are moved to Chapter 2, are adequately addressed in statute, or will be included in the IUP. Chapter 9 is deleted because emergency assistance has been moved to Chapter 2 and will be implemented through the IUP. Chapter 10 is deleted because it is redundant of state statutes which adequately address requirements and eligibility for the linked deposit program. Chapter 11 is deleted because the requirements will be covered by applicable agreements and contracts with financial institutions.

4. Amendments to Title 115 – Rules of Practice and Procedure. Changes to Chapter 1 delete definitions and incorporate model rules of agency procedure promulgated by the Attorney General. Chapter 2 is deleted and incorporated as a model rule in Chapter 1.

Chapter 3 is deleted because it duplicates statutory public record requirements and is not needed in regulation. Changes to Chapter 4 update language on confidentiality of trade secrets and is renumbered as Chapter 2. Changes to Chapter 5 update language on public hearings and is renumbered as Chapter 3. Chapter 6 is deleted because it duplicates statutory language on voluntary compliance. Chapters 7 through 10 are deleted and incorporated as model rules in Chapter 1. The EQC will vote to adopt, amend or not approve the NDEQ proposal after hearing and considering all the testimony and written submissions.



FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT

Agency: Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality
 Prepared by: Annette Kovar *AK*
 Date Prepared: December 13, 2018
 Phone: (402) 471-3194
 Title: 115
 Chapter: 1 through 10
 Name: *Rules of Practice and Procedure*

State Status: Hearing Draft

Type of Fiscal Impact:

	State Agency	Political subdivision	Regulated Public
No Fiscal Impact	X	X	X
Increase Costs			
Decrease Costs			
Increased Revenue			
Decreased Revenue			
Indeterminable			

Description of Impact:

State Agency: There is no fiscal impact related to the consolidation and updating of chapters in Title 115, Chapters 1 through 10.

Political Subdivision: No fiscal impact

Regulated Public: No fiscal impact

NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Title 115 - Rules Of Practice And Procedure

Chapter 1 - ~~Definition of Terms~~ Adoption of Model Rules

001 For any proceeding before the agency to which the Administrative Procedures Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-901 et seq. is made applicable by statute, the following Model Rules of Agency Procedure promulgated as Title 53 NAC by the Nebraska Attorney General, are incorporated by reference except as specifically indicated.

001.01 53 NAC Chapter 1 - Negotiated Rulemaking.

001.02 53 NAC Chapter 2 - Petition for Rulemaking.

001.03 53 NAC Chapter 3 - Procedures Governing Declaratory Orders.

001.04 53 NAC Chapter 4 - Rules of Procedure for Hearings in Contested Cases Before an Agency.

001.04A When the action before the agency is initiated by an administrative order or permit decision issued by the director under Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-1507, the petition and request for a contested case hearing must be filed within thirty days of receipt of the administrative order or permit decision in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-1507. The contested case proceeding commences on the filing of a petition and request for a contested case hearing by the recipient of the administrative order or permit decision.

001.04B When the action before the agency is initiated by an emergency order issued by the director in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-1507, the emergency order is effective immediately and the filing of a petition and request for a contested case hearing does not stay its effectiveness.

"Agency" shall mean the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality.

002 "Agency Director" shall mean the director of the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality.

003 "Argument" shall mean the oral statement of the petitioner or any other party which explains his or her view of the facts and issue to be decided, the law applicable to the question presented, and the reasoning that connects the facts and law.

004 "Complaint" shall mean the initial document issued by the agency director and served upon an alleged violator or violators that specifies the provision of law, rule or regulation, or order alleged to be violated, the facts alleged to constitute a violation, and prescribes any necessary corrective action to be taken.

005 "Contested case" shall mean a proceeding before the agency in which the legal rights, duties, or privileges of specific parties are required by law or constitutional right to be determined after hearing before the agency.

006 "Council" means the Nebraska Environmental Quality Council.

007 "Declaratory order proceeding" shall mean a proceeding initiated by a petitioner seeking issuance of a binding order by the agency as to the applicability of specified circumstances to a statute, rule, regulation, or order within the primary jurisdiction of the agency.

~~008~~ “Ex parte communication” shall mean an oral or written communication which is not on the record in a contested case with respect to which reasonable notice to all parties was not given. Ex parte communication shall not include:

~~008.01~~ Communications which do not pertain to the merits of a contested case;

~~008.02~~ Communications required for the disposition of ex parte matters as authorized by law;

~~008.03~~ Communication in a rulemaking proceeding; and

~~008.04~~ Communications to which all parties have given consent.

~~009~~ “Hearing officer” shall mean the person or persons conducting a hearing, contested case, or other proceeding pursuant to the Administrative Procedure Act, whether designated as the presiding officer, administrative law judge, or some other title designation.

~~010~~ “Intervenor(s)” shall mean persons, political subdivisions, corporations, organizations, or other entities who have or claim to have any interest, legal right, duty, privilege, or immunity, which would be directly affected by the agency’s issuance of a binding declaratory order.

~~011~~ “Necessary party” shall mean a person who or an entity which has a specific interest in the applicability of the statute, rule, regulation, or order, as distinguished from a general interest such as may be the concern of the public at large. A necessary party is one which is or would be adversely affected in a legally cognizable way by the uncertainty sought to be resolved.

~~012~~ “Party(ies)” shall mean persons, political subdivisions, corporations, organizations, or other entities subject to the jurisdiction of the agency who are involved in a contested case, declaratory order proceeding, or other proceeding pursuant to the Administrative Procedure Act.

~~013~~ “Petition” shall mean the initial document filed in accordance with this title to initiate a contested case or declaratory order proceeding that sets forth a claim and request for agency action.

~~014~~ “Petitioners” shall mean a party or parties who have filed a petition with the agency in a contested case or declaratory order proceeding.

~~015~~ “Pleading” shall mean any written petition, answer, or motion used in any contested case or declaratory order proceeding before the agency as set forth in this Title.

~~016~~ “Respondent” shall mean a party or parties in a contested case whose legal rights, duties, or privileges are subject to petitioner’s demands. The agency director shall be the respondent in cases involving appeals of agency decisions or actions.

Enabling Legislation: Neb. Rev. Stat. [§81-1507](#); §84-901 et seq.; §81-1504(1)(7)(9)(13); §81-1507.

NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Title 115 - Rules Of Practice And Procedure

~~Chapter 2 - Petition for Declaratory Order~~

~~001 Generally. A request for a declaratory order must be made by a petition that meets the requirements of Chapter 7.~~

~~002 Who may file. Any person may petition the agency for issuance of a declaratory order as to the applicability to specified circumstances of a statute, rule, regulation, or order which is within the primary jurisdiction of the agency.~~

~~003 When orders appropriate. A declaratory order may be requested on the applicability of a statute, rule, regulation, or order enforced by the agency. "Applicability" refers to the appropriateness of the relation of the law to the person, property, or state of facts, or its relevance under the circumstances given. It may include such questions as whether the law applies at all, to whom it applies, when it applies, how it applies, or which law applies. Considerations as to whether issuance of a declaratory order is appropriate include:~~

~~003.01 A declaratory order may be requested only on the applicability of existing statutes and rules and regulations.~~

~~003.02 A declaratory order may be requested to obtain a determination of proposed conduct, not to obtain a determination of the effect of conduct that has already occurred.~~

~~003.03 A declaratory order is not a mechanism for review or appeal of a decision made by the agency in a contested case.~~

~~003.04 A declaratory order may not be requested to obtain a declaration by the agency that a statute or regulation is unconstitutional or that a regulation of the agency is invalid.~~

~~003.05 A declaratory order may not be issued by the agency that would substantially prejudice the rights of a person who would be a necessary party and who does not consent in writing to the determination of the matter by a declaratory order proceeding.~~

~~004 Form of petition. A petition for declaratory order shall be in the form of either a pleading or letter which shall contain each of the following:~~

~~004.01 A caption which shall include:~~

~~004.01A The venue: BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY,
STATE OF NEBRASKA;~~

~~004.01B A heading specifying the subject matter and the name of the petitioner; and~~

~~004.01C The name of the pleading: PETITION FOR DECLARATORY ORDER.~~

~~004.02 Contents which shall include:~~

~~004.02A The name and address of the petitioner;~~

~~004.02B~~ The name and address of all persons or entities, known to the petitioner, who may have a specific interest in the applicability of the statute, rule, regulation, or order or who may be adversely affected by the issue sought to be resolved by the petitioner.

~~004.02C~~ The statute, rule, regulation, or order upon which the petitioner seeks issuance of a declaratory order;

~~004.02D~~ A detailed statement of all of the material facts and specific circumstances which apply to petitioner's request for issuance of a declaratory order;

~~004.02E~~ All propositions of law or contentions asserted by the petitioner;

~~004.02F~~ A demand for the relief to which the petitioner alleges entitlement. The petition shall state the petitioner's position as to how the agency should rule and why the agency should rule in the manner requested; and

~~004.02G~~ Any documents pertinent to the petition that the petitioner wishes to be considered by the agency.

~~004.03~~ The signature of the petitioner, or when represented by an attorney, the signature of the attorney.

~~004.04~~ The name and address of the petitioner, and when represented by an attorney, the name, address, telephone number, and bar number of the attorney.

~~004.05~~ Size and paper. The petition shall be made on white, letter-sized (8 ½ x 11 inch) paper.

~~004.06~~ Print. The petition shall be legibly typewritten, photostatically reproduced, printed, or handwritten. If handwritten, the petition must be written in ink. Only one side of a page shall contain any writing.

~~004.07~~ Attachments. Any documents attached to a petition shall be securely fastened to the pleading and shall meet the requirements of 004.05 and 004.06 above and, when possible, be reproduced on 8 ½ x 11 inch paper or placed in an 8 ½ x 11 inch envelope and clearly marked as an attachment to the petition.

~~004.08~~ The petition shall be subscribed and verified by the petitioner. If the petitioner is a corporation, political subdivision, or other entity, then the petition shall be subscribed and verified by a duly authorized agent of the petitioning entity.

~~004.09~~ Sample Petition. The petitioner may use the sample form of a petition in subsection 011 of this chapter. The petitioner may also prepare a reasonable facsimile of the sample form so long as the requirements of subsections 004 of this chapter are satisfied.

~~004.10~~ Written consents. The petitioner shall also attach to the petition any written consents obtained from any necessary party that the petition may be determined by use of a declaratory order proceeding.

~~005~~ Submission and service of a declaratory order petition.

~~005.01~~ The original petition for declaratory order shall be filed with the agency director by mail or in person during the agency's normal business hours.

~~005.02~~ The petition shall be deemed as filed when it is actually received by the agency. The agency shall date stamp all petitions upon receipt.

~~005.03~~ At the same time the petition is filed with the agency, the petitioner shall serve a copy of the petition, by certified mail, return receipt requested, on all necessary parties, including all persons, political subdivisions, corporations, organizations, or other entities who are known to have or claim any interest, legal right, duty, privilege, or immunity which would be directly affected by issuance of a declaratory order in this matter by the agency.

~~006~~ Disposition of the petition.

~~006.01~~ Generally. Upon the filing of a petition, the agency director may consider the petition or delegate the matter to a designated hearing officer or agency employee to consider the petition and recommend a decision to the agency director. In reviewing the petition, the agency may do one or more of the following:

~~006.01A~~ Require that additional information be submitted before the petition will be further considered;

~~006.01B~~ Require a petitioner to provide notice to persons or entities who may be necessary parties and other persons that a request for a declaratory order has been filed with the agency;

~~006.01C~~ Schedule a date, time, and location at which the petitioner and any other parties to the proceeding may make an oral presentation on the petition;

~~006.01D~~ Consider the petition and any attachments without oral presentation.

~~006.02~~ Within 30 days after the petition is filed, the agency shall, in writing:

~~006.02A~~ Issue an order declaring the applicability of the statute, regulation, rule, or order in question to the specified circumstances; or

~~006.02B~~ Agree to issue an order by a specified time declaring the applicability of the statute, regulation, rule, or order in question to the specified circumstances; or

~~006.02C~~ Set the matter for specified proceedings as set forth in 006.01; or

~~006.02D~~ Decline to issue a declaratory ruling, stating the reasons for the agency's decision.

~~006.03~~ Notwithstanding subsection 006.02 of this chapter, the agency may determine at any time that it will not issue a declaratory order if issuance of an order under the circumstances would be contrary to subsection 009 of this chapter. The agency shall notify the petitioner and, if applicable, any intervenor or necessary party in writing when the agency determines not to issue a declaratory order.

~~007~~ Intervention. Intervention in a declaratory order proceeding shall be allowed if the requirements of Chapter 8, 001 and 002 are satisfied. The agency may invite any person or entity to file a petition for intervention.

~~008~~ Issuance of declaratory order.

~~008.01~~ The declaratory order shall be in writing and shall include the following:

~~008.01A~~ The names of all parties to the proceeding upon which the order is based;

~~008.01B~~ The facts upon which the order is based;

~~008.01C~~ The statute, regulation, rule, or order at issue in the matter;

~~008.01D~~ The agency's conclusion as to the applicability of the statute, regulation, rule, or order to the facts; and

~~008.01E~~ The reasons relied upon by the agency to support its conclusions.

~~008.02~~ A copy of the declaratory order shall be served upon each party by certified mail, return receipt requested.

~~008.03~~ Effect of a declaratory order. A declaratory order shall have the same status and binding effect as any other order issued in a contested case.

~~009~~ Circumstances under which agency will not issue declaratory orders.

~~009.01~~ Grounds upon which the agency shall refuse to issue a declaratory order include, but are not limited to, the following:

~~009.01A~~ The petition requests a declaratory order on a matter that is outside the scope of authority of the agency;

~~009.01B~~ The petition requests review or appeal of a decision made by the agency in a contested case;

~~009.01C~~ The petition requests a declaratory order on the effect of past conduct;

~~009.01D~~ An investigation for purposes of a formal adjudication, a contested case, or a petition to issue, amend, or repeal regulations is pending before the agency involving the petitioner on substantially the same or similar facts of issues raised in the petition;

~~009.01E~~ The petition seeks a declaration that a statute or rule or regulation is unconstitutional or invalid;

~~009.01F~~ The issue raised in the petition has been settled by a change in circumstances or other means so as to render moot the need for a declaratory order;

~~009.01G~~ An order would substantially prejudice the rights of a person or entity who would be a necessary party and who does not consent in writing to the determination of the matter by a declaratory order proceeding;

~~009.01H~~ An order would not resolve the controversy or uncertainty; or

~~009.01I~~ The question posed or facts presented are insufficiently specific, overly broad, or are otherwise inappropriate as a basis upon which to decide the matter.

~~009.02~~ Grounds upon which the agency may determine to refuse to issue a declaratory order include, but are not limited to, the following:

~~009.02A~~ Refusal is necessary to assure adequate allocation of agency resources are available for issuing rulings on petitions raising questions of greater urgency or significance;

~~009.02B~~ The question presented is of such complexity that the agency has had insufficient opportunity or resources to develop a fully matured ruling;

~~009.02C~~ The petitioner fails to submit any additional information requested by the agency or submits such information after the date established by the agency.

~~010 Appeal. A declaratory order is subject to review in the manner provided for review of contested cases under the Administrative Procedure Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §§84-901 et seq. Specific procedures for appeal are set forth in Neb. Rev. Stat. §§84-917.~~

011 Form of Petition for Declaratory Order

~~BEFORE THE NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY~~

~~In the matter of _____)
the application of [name] _____)
_____)
_____)~~ PETITION FOR
DECLARATORY ORDER _____

- ~~1. Petitioner's name and address;~~
- ~~2. The name and address of all persons who or entities which may have a specific interest in the applicability of the statute, rule, regulation, or order, or who may be adversely affected by the issue sought to be resolved;~~
- ~~3. All material facts and specific circumstances;~~
- ~~4. All rules of law which apply;~~
- ~~5. Petitioner's demand for relief;~~

~~_____ DATED on this _____ day of _____, 20__.~~

~~VERIFICATION~~

~~STATE OF _____)
_____) ss.
COUNTY OF _____)~~

~~_____ [Print name] _____, being first duly sworn, states that he/she is the petitioner/petitioner's agency in the above entitled matter; that he/she has read the foregoing Petition for Declaratory Order; and that the allegations of fact therein are true.~~

~~_____

_____ [Petitioner's signature]~~

~~_____ SUBSCRIBED and sworn to before me on this _____ day of _____, 20__.~~

~~_____ NOTARY SEAL _____
_____ Notary Signature~~

~~Enabling Legislation: Neb. Rev. Stat. §§81-1504(1)(13); §84-909; §84-912.01.~~

NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

~~Title 115 - Rules Of Practice And Procedure~~

~~Chapter 3 - Public Records Availability~~

~~001 Any person may examine public records maintained by the agency during the agency's business hours, make memoranda or abstracts from such records, or copies of such records, upon written request to the records manager of the agency for an appointment to view such records at its Lincoln office.~~

~~001.01 The request letter and its envelope should be marked "Records Request" and include the name, mailing address and day-time telephone number in the event the agency needs to contact the person.~~

~~001.02 The request should reasonably describe the records being sought and, whenever possible, include specific information about each record sought, such as the date, title or name, author, recipient, and subject matter. The agency does not conduct research to determine what records to provide.~~

~~001.03 If the request does not sufficiently describe the records to allow the agency to locate them, the agency may require additional information be provided.~~

~~001.04 A written request for copies of records shall be considered an agreement that the person requesting the copies will pay all applicable fees up to fifty dollars (\$50). Copies the cost of which are anticipated to exceed fifty dollars are subject to 003.02.~~

~~001.05 Records shall not be removed from the agency premises.~~

~~001.06 The agency will not provide copies of materials that are subject to copyright law.~~

~~002 Upon receipt of a written request for access to or copies of a public record, the agency will provide the requested record(s) for examination or copies as soon as practicable but no later than four business days after the written request is received except as provided in 002.01.~~

~~002.01 If the entire request cannot reasonably be fulfilled within four business days due to the significant difficulty or extensiveness of the request, the agency will notify the requestor in writing of the reasons for the delay, including the earliest practicable date for fulfilling the request, an estimate of the expected cost of any copies, and an opportunity for the requestor to modify or prioritize the items within the request.~~

~~003 Costs. Any person requesting photographic or other copies of public records must pay for the cost of reproduction in an amount determined by the agency to cover the actual cost of making the copies available.~~

~~003.01 Charges for sales tax, and postage if necessary, shall be assessed on all requests.~~

~~003.02 If the cost of copies is estimated by the agency's records management unit to cost more than fifty dollars (\$50), the agency may require the requestor to furnish a deposit prior to fulfilling the request. Such deposit shall not exceed the estimated cost or fifty dollars (\$50), whichever is less. The balance of any deposit above actual costs shall be returned to the requestor.~~

~~004 The agency will provide a certified copy of the agency's public records upon receipt of a written request and on payment of the applicable fees, including:~~

~~004.01 The fee shall be thirty cents per hundred words if the copy is typewritten, or the cost of copies under 003.~~

~~004.02 A fee of one dollar shall be charged for each certificate of the certifying officer.~~

~~004.03 Transcripts and other documents prepared and transcribed by a court reporter may be viewed but not copied. Arrangements for reproduction may be made with the court reporter.~~

~~005 The agency may withhold records in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-712.05. Any reasonably segregable public portion of such record shall be provided upon request after deletion of the portions which may be withheld.~~

~~005.01 Any person denied a request for public records by the director or his or her designee shall receive a written response in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-712.04.~~

~~005.02 Any person denied a request for public records may seek review in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-712.03.~~

Enabling Legislation: Neb. Rev. Stat. §§84-712 et seq.; §25-1280.

Legal Citation: Title 115, Ch. 3, Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality

NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Title 115 - Rules Of Practice And Procedure

Chapter ~~4-2~~ - Confidentiality for Trade Secrets

001 Whenever the agency requests that a regulated entity furnish records or information which may be entitled to confidential treatment as trade secrets under Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-1527 or §84-712.05, the regulated entity may raise a claim of confidentiality for trade secrets at the time of submission of the record or information to the agency.

001.01 If no claim of confidentiality for trade secrets accompanies the record or information when it is received by the agency, the claim is waived and the material may be made available to the public by the agency without further notice to the submitting entity, unless the claimant establishes a just reason for the claim subsequent to submission of the record or information under 002.

001.02 The claimant ~~shall~~should certify the record or information by placing on or attaching at the time of submission a cover sheet with appropriate notice, reasons for asserting the claim, and language, such as trade secret, proprietary, or confidential.

001.03 The appropriate notice and reasons for asserting the claim ~~shall~~should include:

001.03A Certification that the record or information is entitled to confidentiality as a trade secret and that such claim has not expired by its terms, been waived, or withdrawn;

001.03B Description of reasonable measures the claimant has taken to protect the confidentiality of the information or record, and that it intends to continue to take such measures;

001.03C Assurance that the information or record is not, and has not been, reasonably obtainable without the claimant's consent by other persons (other than governmental bodies) by use of legitimate means; and

001.03D Reasons why or how disclosure of the information or record is likely to result in substantial harmful effects to the business's competitive position and what those harmful effects would be, why they should be viewed as substantial, and an explanation of the causal relationship between disclosure and such harmful effects.

001.04 Allegedly confidential portions of otherwise non-confidential records and information ~~should~~are to be clearly identified by the claimant and may be submitted separately to facilitate identification and handling by the agency. The agency may require the claimant to submit a separate copy of the record and information with the confidential portions omitted to facilitate requests for access by the public.

001.05 If the regulated entity desires confidential treatment only until a certain date or the occurrence of a certain event, the notice ~~should~~is to so state.

002 If a confidentiality claim for trade secrets covering the record or information is received after the submission of the record or information itself is received, the agency will make such efforts as are administratively practicable to associate the late claim with copies of the previously-submitted information in the agency files, although the agency cannot assure that such efforts will be effective given the possibility of prior disclosure to the public.

003 For each claim the director or his or her designee shall-will determine whether sufficient information has been provided to support the claim that the record or information relates to processes or methods are entitled to protection as trade secrets.

003.01 In making such determination ~~which shall be on the record~~, the director shall-will consider whether:

003.01A The claimant has asserted a business confidentiality claim which has not expired by its terms, nor been waived nor withdrawn;

003.01B The claimant has satisfactorily shown that it has taken reasonable measures to protect the confidentiality of the information or record, and that it intends to continue to take such measures;

003.01C The information or record is not, and has not been, reasonably obtainable without the business' consent by other persons (other than governmental bodies) by use of legitimate means (other than discovery based on a showing of special need in a judicial or quasi-judicial proceeding);

003.01D No statute specifically requires disclosure of the information or record; and

003.01E The claimant has satisfactorily shown that disclosure of the information or record is likely to cause substantial harm to the business's competitive position.

004 Whenever the director or his or her designee preliminarily determines that records or information required to be submitted to the agency are not entitled to confidential treatment as trade secrets, a written explanation of the reasons for such determination shall-will be furnished to the claimant, who shall-will be afforded an opportunity to comment before a final decision is made.

004.01 Notice of such determination shall-will be sent by certified mail to the claimant specifying a reasonable time allowed for comments.

004.02 Failure to furnish timely comments shall-will be considered a waiver of the claim.

005 Notice of the final decision denying a claim for confidential treatment of records or information as trade secrets shall-will be provided to the claimant in writing by certified mail. The agency will make the record or information available to the public on the tenth day after the date of the claimant's receipt of the written notice of denial of its claim.

006 The director may not withhold records as confidential if they have been disclosed in an open court, open administrative proceeding, open meeting or disclosed by the department in its duties.

Enabling Legislation: Neb. Rev. Stat. §§81-1527; §84-712.05.

Legal Citation: Title 115, Ch. 42, Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality

NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Title 115 - Rules Of Practice And Procedure

Chapter ~~5-3~~ - Public Hearings

001 ~~Unless more specific requirements in other agency Titles apply, this~~This chapter contains minimum requirements for public hearings for:

001.01 Permit decisions which by statute or other agency regulations ~~must~~ provide ~~for~~ public notice, public review and comment, and an opportunity to request a public hearing before making a final permit decision. ~~More specific requirements in other agency titles may apply.~~

001.02 Fact-finding hearings ~~required~~ afforded by statute or regulation.

002 To the extent provided by statute or other agency regulations authorizing public hearings for proposed permit decisions, any person may submit written comments on the proposed permit decision and may request a public hearing, if no hearing has already been scheduled. A request for a public hearing ~~shall is to be~~ submitted in writing and ~~shall~~ state the nature of the issues proposed to be raised in the hearing.

003 If the director or his or her designee tentatively decides to issue or modify a permit, a draft permit shall be prepared. The draft permit ~~shall~~ will be:

003.01 Accompanied by a statement of basis described in 005;

003.02 Based on the administrative record described in 006;

003.03 Publicly noticed as described in 007; and

003.04 Made available for public review and comment.

004 If the director or his or her designee tentatively decides to deny or revoke a permit, the tentative decision ~~shall~~ will be:

004.01 Accompanied by a statement of the basis and reasons for the revocation described in 005;

004.02 Based on the administrative record described in 006;

004.03 Publicly noticed as described in 007; and

004.04 Made available for public review and comment.

005 A statement of basis ~~shall~~ will be prepared for every draft permit decision. A statement of basis ~~shall~~ will briefly describe the authority and reasons for the conditions of the draft permit, or in the case of permit denial or revocation, reasons supporting the tentative decision.

006 The administrative record for a tentative permit decision ~~shall~~ will consist of:

006.01 The application, if required, and any supporting data furnished by the applicant;

006.02 The draft permit or notice of intent to deny the application or to revoke the permit;

006.03 The statement of basis;

006.04 Other documents contained in the supporting file for the draft permit.

007 ~~Unless more specific requirements in other agency Titles apply, the~~ The agency ~~shall give~~ will provide public notice of tentative permit decisions by placing the notice on the agency webpage for a minimum of thirty days or by publication in a daily or weekly newspaper having general circulation in the area affected by the permit.

007.01 The public notice shall contain the following minimum information:

007.01A Name and address of the agency;

007.01B Name and address of the permittee or permit applicant and, if different, of the facility or activity regulated by the permit;

007.01C A brief description of the business conducted at the facility or activity described in the permit application or the draft permit;

007.01D Name, address and telephone number of a person from whom interested persons may obtain further information or copies of documents; and

007.01E A brief description of the comment procedures and the time and place of any hearing that will be held, including a statement of procedures to request a hearing unless a hearing has already been scheduled.

008 The agency ~~shall~~ will hold a public hearing whenever the director or his or her designee finds, on the basis of requests, a significant degree of public interest in the tentative permit decision exists. The director or his or her designee may also hold a public hearing at his or her discretion, whenever such a hearing might clarify one or more issues involved in the permit decision. The director may appoint a hearing officer to conduct the hearing.

008.01 The agency ~~shall~~ will provide public notice of the hearing as specified in 007.

008.02 In addition to the general public notice described d in 007, the public notice of a hearing ~~shall~~ will contain the following information:

008.02A Date, time, and place of the hearing, which ~~shall~~ will be held in the area affected unless another location is specifically required; and

008.02B A brief description of the nature and purpose of the hearing, including the applicable rules and procedures.

009 All persons, including applicants, who believe any proposed condition of a draft permit is inappropriate or that the director's tentative decision to deny an application or revoke a permit is inappropriate, must raise all reasonably ascertainable issues and submit all reasonably available arguments supporting their position by the close of the public comment period, including any public hearing. Any supporting materials which are submitted ~~shall~~ are to be included in full unless they are part of the administrative record in the same proceeding or consist of State or Federal statutes and regulations or other generally available reference materials.

010 Upon conclusion of the public hearing the hearing officer, if one was appointed, shall forward the transcript or recording of the hearing and any other evidence to the director for a final decision. Any final decision made by the director shall be governed by the standards set forth in the Nebraska Administrative Procedure Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-901 et seq. and applicable statutory and regulatory authority of the agency.

011 The director or his or her designee ~~shall will~~ base ~~the~~ final permit decision on the administrative record described in this section which shall consist of:

011.01 The administrative record for the tentative permit decision described in 006;

011.02 All comments received during the public comment period;

011.03 The tape or transcript of any hearings held;

011.04 Any written materials submitted at such a hearing;

011.05 Any response to comments prepared by the agency; and

011.06 The final permit or permit decision.

012 The final decision to issue a permit may be reviewed by the district court in a proceeding instituted by filing a petition in error pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §25-1901 and Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-917.

013 In accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-1507(3), any person who is denied a permit or had a permit revoked or modified may request a contested case under ~~Chapter 7 of~~ this title by filing a petition with the director within ~~30~~ thirty days after receipt of notice of the permit decision.

014 ~~Unless more specific requirements in other agency Titles apply, the~~The agency ~~shall will~~ conduct fact-finding hearings in accordance with the statute or regulation authorizing the hearing. At a minimum, the agency shall:

014.01 Publish notice of the hearing, including:

014.01A Date, time, and place of the hearing, which ~~shall will~~ be held in the area affected unless another location is specifically required, and

014.01B A brief description of the nature and purpose of the hearing, including the applicable rules and procedures.

015 Rulemaking hearings before the Environmental Quality Council ~~shall will~~ be conducted in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-1505(17) and the Administrative Procedure Act.

016 Strict rules of evidence and procedure ~~shall will~~ not apply in fact-finding hearings. The director or a hearing officer appointed by the director ~~shall may~~ admit and consider all relevant testimony and evidence having probative value in connection with the subject of the hearing.

017 No person ~~shall will~~ be required to be sworn or take an oath prior to presenting any evidence, which may be oral or written.

018 The hearing officer ~~shall will~~ among other things, open the proceedings, enter into the record the public notice given for the hearing, receive testimony, accept and properly mark exhibits, make a record of the hearing, and conduct such other related duties as necessary. Unless the final decisionmaker is presiding at the hearing, the hearing officer ~~shall will~~ have no power, acting alone, to take any action involving a final determination from the hearing.

Enabling Legislation: Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-1504(1)(9)(11)(13); §81-1505; §81-1505(17); §81-1507(3); §84-901 et seq.

Legal Citation: Title 115, Ch. 53, Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality.

~~NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY~~

~~Title 115 - Rules Of Practice And Procedure~~

~~Chapter 6 - Voluntary Compliance~~

~~001 The director shall make every effort to obtain voluntary compliance through warning, conference, or any other appropriate means prior to initiating enforcement proceedings, except that such requirement shall not be construed to alter enforcement duties or requirements of the director and the department.~~

~~Enabling Legislation: Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-1510(1).~~

~~Legal Citation: Title 115, Ch. 6, Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality~~

~~NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY~~

~~Title 115—Rules Of Practice And Procedure~~

~~Chapter 7—Contested Cases~~

~~001—Commencement of a contested case.~~

~~001.01 The contested case begins with the filing of a complaint or petition and request for a hearing, if applicable.~~

~~001.02 The parties to a contested case shall be the petitioner or person by whom a contested case is brought and the respondent or person against whom a contested case is brought.~~

~~001.03 A party may appear on his or her own behalf in a contested case proceeding or may be represented by an attorney or other representative as permitted by law.~~

~~001.04 The pleadings in a contested case may include a petition, complaint, answer, reply, notice, motion, stipulation, objection or order or other formal written document filed in a proceeding before an agency. Any pleading filed in a contested case shall meet the following requirements:~~

~~001.04A The pleading shall contain a heading specifying the name of the agency and the title or nature of the pleading, state material factual allegations, and state concisely the action the agency is being requested to take, contain the name and address of the petitioner, and shall be signed by the party filing the pleading, or when represented by an attorney, the signature of the attorney. Attorneys shall include their address, telephone number and bar number. The initial petition shall also contain the name and address of the respondent.~~

~~001.04B All pleadings shall be made on white, letter-sized (8 ½ x 11 inch) paper and shall be legibly typewritten, photostatically reproduced, printed or handwritten. If handwritten, a pleading must be written in ink.~~

~~001.05 All pleadings shall be filed with the agency at its Lincoln office. Filing may be accomplished by personal delivery or mail and will be received during regular office hours of the agency. The date of filing of an initial petition shall be the date first received during the regular business hours of the agency.~~

~~001.06 The agency shall serve a copy of any complaint on each respondent listed in the complaint personally or by certified mail. Written proof of such service shall be filed with the agency. Each respondent who chooses to file a responsive pleading must do so within 20 days from the date of service.~~

~~001.07 All pleadings subsequent to the initial complaint or petition shall be served by the party filing such pleading upon all attorneys of record or other representatives of record and upon all unrepresented parties. Service shall be made personally or by first-class or certified mail. Written proof of such service shall be filed with the agency.~~

~~001.08 Unless state law provides that a hearing is not required, a hearing date shall be set by the agency in accordance with statutory requirements. A written notice of the time and place of hearing and the name of the hearing officer, if known, shall be served by the agency upon all~~

~~attorneys of record or other representatives of record and upon all unrepresented parties. The notice must include proof of such service and will be filed with the agency.~~

~~001.09 In computing time prescribed or allowed by this chapter or by any applicable statute in which the method of computing time is not specifically provided, days will be computed by excluding the day of the act or event and including the last day of the period. If the last day of the period falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or state holiday, the period shall include the next working day.~~

002 ~~Hearing officer; criteria.~~

~~002.01 The agency director may conduct a contested case hearing or designate a hearing officer to conduct the hearing on his or her behalf and submit a recommended decision to the director.~~

~~002.02 A person who has served as investigator, prosecutor, or advocate in a contested case or in its prehearing stage may not serve as hearing officer or assist or advise a hearing officer in the same proceeding except as provided in subsection 002.04.~~

~~002.03 A person who is subject to the authority, direction, or discretion of one who has served as investigator, prosecutor, or advocate in a contested case or in its prehearing stage may not serve as hearing officer or advise a hearing officer in the same proceeding except as provided in subsection 002.04.~~

~~002.04 If all parties consent, a person who has served as, or who is subject to the authority, direction, or discretion of one who has served as investigator, prosecutor, or advocate in a contested case or in its prehearing stage may assist a hearing officer in the preparation of orders.~~

~~002.05 A person may serve as hearing officer at successive stages of the same contested case.~~

003 ~~Prehearing Procedures.~~

~~003.01 A hearing officer may determine whether a prehearing conference will be conducted. If a prehearing conference is not held, a hearing officer for the hearing may issue a prehearing order, based on the pleadings, to regulate the conduct of the proceedings.~~

003.01A ~~If a prehearing conference is conducted:~~

~~003.01A1 The hearing officer shall promptly notify the agency of the determination that a prehearing conference will be conducted. The agency may assign another hearing officer for the prehearing conference; and~~

~~003.01A2 The hearing officer for the prehearing conference shall set the time and place of the conference and give reasonable written notice to all parties and to all persons who have filed written petitions to intervene in the matter. The agency shall give notice to other persons entitled to notice.~~

003.01A3 ~~The notice shall include the following:~~

~~003.01A3(a) The names and mailing addresses of all parties and other persons to whom notice is being given by the hearing officer;~~

~~003.01A3(b) The name, official title, mailing address, and telephone number of any counsel or employee who has been designated to appear for the agency;~~

~~003.01A3(c) The official file or other reference number, the name of the proceeding, and a general description of the subject matter;~~

~~003.01A3(d) A statement of the time, place, and nature of the prehearing conference;~~

~~003.01A3(e) A statement of the legal authority and jurisdiction under which the prehearing conference and the hearing are to be held;~~

~~003.01A3(f) The name, official title, mailing address, and telephone number of the hearing officer for the prehearing conference;~~

~~003.01A3(g) A statement that a party who fails to attend or participate in a prehearing conference, hearing, or other stage of a contested case or who fails to make a good faith effort to comply with a prehearing order may be held in default under the Administrative Procedure Act; and~~

~~003.01A3(h) Any other matters that the hearing officer considers desirable to expedite the proceedings.~~

~~003.01B The hearing officer shall conduct a prehearing conference, as may be appropriate, to deal with such matters as exploration of settlement possibilities, preparation of stipulations, clarification of issues, rulings on identity and limitation of the number of witnesses, objections to proffers of evidence, determination of the extent to which direct evidence, rebuttal evidence, or cross-examination will be presented in written form and the extent to which telephone, television, or other electronic means will be used as a substitute for proceedings in person, order of presentation of evidence and cross-examination, rulings regarding issuance of subpoenas, discovery orders, and protective orders, and such other matters as will promote the orderly and prompt conduct of the hearing. The hearing officer shall issue a prehearing order incorporating the matters determined at the prehearing conference.~~

~~003.01C The hearing officer may conduct all or part of the prehearing conference by telephone, television, or other electronic means if each participant in the conference has an opportunity to participate in, to hear, and, if technically feasible, to see the entire proceeding while it is taking place.~~

~~003.02 Discovery in contested cases.~~

~~003.02A The hearing officer or a designee, at the request of any party or upon the hearing officer's own motion, may issue subpoenas, discovery orders, and protective orders in accordance with the rules of civil procedure except as may otherwise be prescribed by law. Subpoenas and orders issued under this subsection may be enforced by the district court.~~

~~003.02B Any prehearing motion to compel discovery, motion to quash, motion for protective order or other discovery-related motion shall:~~

~~003.02B1 Quote the interrogatory, request, question, or subpoena at issue, or be accompanied by a copy of the interrogatory, request, subpoena or excerpt of a deposition;~~

~~003.02B2 State the reasons supporting the motion;~~

~~003.02B3 Be accompanied by a statement setting forth the steps of efforts made by the moving party or his or her counsel to resolve by agreement the issues raised and that agreement has not been achieved; and~~

~~003.02B4 Be filed with the agency. The moving party must serve copies of all such motions to all parties to the contested case.~~

~~003.02C~~ Other than is provided in the previous subsection, discovery materials need not be filed with the agency.

~~003.03~~ Continuances. The hearing officer may, in his or her discretion, grant extensions of time or continuances of hearings upon the hearing officer's own motion or at the timely request of any party for good cause shown. A party must file a written motion for continuance which states in detail the reasons why a continuance is necessary and serve a copy of the motion on all other parties.

~~003.03A~~ Good cause. Good cause for an extension of time or continuance may include, but is not limited to, the following:

~~003.03A1~~ Illness of the party, legal counsel or witness;

~~003.03A2~~ A change in legal representation; or

~~003.03A3~~ Settlement negotiations are underway.

~~003.04~~ Amendments.

~~003.04A~~ A petition may be amended at any time before an answer is filed or is due if notice is given to the respondent or his or her attorney. In all other cases, a petitioner must request permission to amend from the hearing officer.

~~003.04B~~ A hearing officer may, in his or her discretion, also allow the filing of supplemental pleadings alleging facts material to the case occurring after the original pleadings were filed. A hearing officer may also permit amendment of pleadings where a mistake appears or where amendment does not materially change a claim or defense.

~~003.05~~ Informal disposition. Unless otherwise precluded by law, informal disposition may be made of any contested case by stipulation, agreed settlement, consent order, or default.

~~004~~ Conducting a contested case hearing.

~~004.01~~ Order. At the discretion of the hearing officer, the hearing may be conducted in the following order:

~~004.01A~~ The hearing is called to order by the hearing officer. Any preliminary motions, stipulations or agreed orders are entertained.

~~004.01B~~ Each party may be permitted to make an opening statement. Opening statements take place in the same order as the presentation of evidence.

~~004.01C~~ Presentation of evidence.

~~004.01C1~~ Evidence will be received in the following order:

~~004.01C1(a)~~ Evidence is presented by the petitioner;

~~004.01C1(b)~~ Evidence is presented by the respondent;

~~004.01C1(c)~~ Rebuttal evidence is presented by the petitioner; and

~~004.01C1(d)~~ Surrebuttal evidence is presented by the respondent.

~~004.01C2~~ With regard to each witness who testifies, the following examination may be conducted:

~~004.01C2(a)~~ Direct examination conducted by the party who calls the witness;

~~004.01C2(b)~~ Cross-examination by the opposing party;

~~004.01C2(c)~~ Redirect examination by the party who called the witness; and

~~004.01C2(d)~~ Recross-examination by the opposing party.

~~004.01D~~ After the evidence is presented, each party may have opportunity to make a closing argument. Closing arguments shall be made in the same order as the presentation of evidence. The hearing officer may request that the parties submit brief in lieu of closing arguments.

~~004.02~~ Evidence.

~~004.02A~~ In contested cases an agency or hearing officer may admit and give probative effect to evidence which possesses probative value commonly accepted by reasonably prudent persons in the conduct of their affairs and may exclude incompetent, irrelevant, immaterial and unduly repetitious evidence.

~~004.02B~~ Any party to a formal hearing before an agency, from which a decision may be appealed to the courts of this state, may request that the agency be bound by the rules of evidence applicable in district court by delivering to the agency at least three days prior to the holding of the hearing a written request therefore. Such request shall include the requesting party's agreement to be liable for the payment of costs incurred thereby and upon any appeal or review thereof, including the cost of court reporting services which the requesting party shall procure for the hearing.

~~004.02C~~ Documentary evidence may be received in the form of copies of excerpts or incorporated by reference.

~~004.02D~~ All evidence including records and documents in the possession of the agency of which it desires to avail itself shall be offered and made a part of the record in the case. No factual information or evidence other than the record shall be considered in the determination of the case.

~~004.02E~~ A hearing officer or designee may administer oaths and issue subpoenas in accordance with the rules of civil procedure except as may otherwise be prescribed by law. Subpoenas and orders issued under this subsection may be enforced by the district court.

~~004.02F~~ An agency shall give effect to the rules of privilege recognized by law.

~~004.02G~~ An agency may take official notice of cognizable facts and in addition may take official notice of general, technical, or scientific facts within its specialized knowledge and the rules and regulations adopted and promulgated by the agency.

~~004.02G1~~ Parties shall be notified either before or during the hearing or by reference in preliminary reports or otherwise of materials so noticed.

~~004.02G2~~ Parties shall be afforded an opportunity to contest facts so noticed.

~~004.02G3~~ The record shall contain a written record of everything officially noticed.

~~004.02H~~ An agency may utilize its experience, technical competence and specialized knowledge in the evaluation of the evidence presented to it.

~~004.03~~ Conducting the hearing by electronic means. The hearing officer may conduct all or part of the hearing by telephone, television, or other electronic means if each participant in the hearing has an opportunity to participate in, to hear, and, if technically feasible, to see the entire proceeding while it is taking place.

~~004.04~~ Official record.

~~004.04A~~ The agency shall prepare an official record, which shall include testimony and exhibits, in each contested case, but it shall not be necessary to transcribe the record of the proceedings unless requested for purpose of rehearing or appeal, in which event the transcript and record shall be furnished by the agency upon request and tender of the cost of preparation.

~~004.04B~~ An agency shall maintain an official record of each contested case under the Administrative Procedure Act for at least four years following the date of the final order.

~~004.04C~~ The agency record shall consist only of the following:

~~004.04C1~~ Notices of all proceedings;

~~004.04C2~~ Any pleadings, motions, requests, preliminary or intermediate rulings and orders, and similar correspondence to or from the agency pertaining to the contested case;

~~004.04C3~~ The record of the hearing before the agency, including all exhibits and evidence introduced during such hearing, a statement of matters officially noticed by the agency during the proceeding, and all proffers of proof and objections and rulings thereon; and

~~004.04C4~~ The final order.

~~004.04D~~ As provided in Chapter 9, the hearing officer or agency head, or employee who is or may reasonably be expected to be involved in the decision making process of the contested case who receives or who makes or knowingly causes to be made an ex parte communication shall make the appropriate filings which shall be included in the official record of the contested case.

~~004.04E~~ Except to the extent that the Administrative Procedure Act or another statute provides otherwise, the agency record shall constitute the exclusive basis for agency action in contested cases under the act and for judicial review thereof.

~~004.05~~ Costs. All the costs of a formal hearing shall be paid by the party or parties against whom a final decision is rendered.

~~005~~ Decision and order in a contested case.

~~005.01~~ Every decision and order adverse to a party to the proceeding, rendered by an agency in a contested case, shall be in writing or stated in the record and shall be accompanied by findings of fact and conclusions of law.

~~005.02~~ The decision and order should include:

~~005.02A The name of the agency and name of the proceeding;~~

~~005.02B The time and place of the hearing;~~

~~005.02C The names of all the parties or their attorneys who entered an appearance at the hearing;~~

~~005.02D The findings of fact consisting of a concise statement of the conclusions upon each contested issue of fact;~~

~~005.02E The conclusions of law consisting of the applications of the controlling law to the facts found and the legal results arising therefrom; and~~

~~005.02F The order consisting of the action taken by the agency as a result of the facts found and the legal conclusions arising therefrom.~~

~~005.03 Parties to the proceeding shall be notified of the decision and order in person or by mail. A copy of the decision and order and accompanying findings and conclusions shall be delivered or mailed upon request to each party or his or her attorney of record.~~

006 Appeals.

~~006.01 Any person aggrieved by a final decision in a contested case is entitled to judicial review under the Administrative Procedure Act or to resort to such other means of review as may be provided by law.~~

~~006.02 Parties desiring to appeal an agency decision must file a petition for review in the district court of the county where the agency action is taken within thirty days after the service of the final decision by the agency. The thirty day period for appeal commences to run from the date of mailing of the notice of order and decision to the parties or their attorneys of record. Service of the petition and summons must be made in accordance with Nebraska law.~~

~~006.03 Unless otherwise provided by statute, the procedures of Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-917 govern the procedure for taking an appeal.~~

007 Form of Petition for Contested Case

BEFORE THE NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

THE CASE OF _____) Case No. _____

[Insert name of the Petitioner(s)] _____) (assigned by the agency)

_____)

_____) PETITION FOR
_____) CONTESTED CASE
_____) (or other appropriate
designation) of pleading)

Substance of pleading, including:

Petitioner's name and address;

All material facts and specific circumstances;

All rules of law which apply;

Petitioner's request for a hearing and demand for relief.

Submitted by,

Signature of pleader

Name of pleader

Address of pleader

Telephone number of pleader

Enabling Legislation: ~~Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-909; §§84-913-84-919; §81-1507.~~

Legal Citation: ~~Title 115, Ch. 7, Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality~~

NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

~~Title 115 - Rules Of Practice And Procedure~~

~~Chapter 8 - Intervention in a Contested Case~~

~~001 Intervention in a contested case shall be allowed when the following requirements are met:~~

~~001.01A A petition for intervention must be submitted in writing to the director, hearing officer or designee at least five days before the hearing. Copies must be mailed by the petitioner for intervention to all parties named in the hearing officer's notice of the hearing;~~

~~001.01B The petition must state facts demonstrating that the petitioner's legal rights, duties, privileges, immunities, or other legal interests may be substantially affected by the proceeding or that the petitioner qualifies as an intervenor under any provision of law; and~~

~~001.01C The director, hearing officer or designee must determine that the interests of justice and the orderly and prompt conduct of the proceedings will not be impaired by allowing intervention.~~

~~002 The director, hearing officer or designee may grant a petition for intervention at any time upon determining that the intervention sought is in the interests of justice and will not impair the orderly and prompt conduct of the proceedings.~~

~~003 If a petitioner qualifies for intervention, the director, hearing officer or designee may impose conditions upon the intervenor's participation in the proceedings, either at the time that intervention is granted or at any subsequent time. Those conditions may include:~~

~~003.01 Limiting the intervenor's participation to designated issues in which the intervenor has a particular interest demonstrated by the petition;~~

~~003.02 Limiting the intervenor's use of discovery, cross-examination, and other procedures so as to promote the orderly and prompt conduct of the proceedings; and~~

~~003.03 Requiring two or more intervenors to combine their presentation of evidence and argument, cross-examination, discovery, and other participation in the proceedings.~~

~~004 The director, hearing officer or designee, at least 24 hours before the hearing, shall issue an order granting or denying each pending petition for intervention, specifying any conditions and briefly stating the reasons for the order.~~

~~004.01 The director, hearing officer or designee may modify the order at any time, stating the reasons for the modification.~~

~~004.02 The director, hearing officer or designee shall promptly give notice of an order granting, denying, or modifying intervention to the petitioner for intervention and to all parties.~~

Enabling Legislation: ~~Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-1507; §81-1509; §84-909; §84-912.02.~~

Legal Citation: ~~Title 115, Ch. 8, Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality~~

NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

~~Title 115 – Rules Of Practice And Procedure~~

~~Chapter 9 – Exparte Communications Prohibited~~

~~001 Prohibitions; when applicable. The prohibitions found in this chapter shall apply beginning with the time notice of hearing in a contested case is given.~~

~~002 Prohibitions; to whom applicable.~~

~~002.01 Parties and public. No party in a contested case or other person outside the agency having an interest in the contested case shall make or knowingly cause to be made an ex parte communication to the hearing officer or to an agency head or employee who is or may reasonably be expected to be involved in the decisionmaking process of the contested case.~~

~~002.02 Persons in decisionmaking roles. No hearing officer or agency head or employee who is or may reasonably be expected to be involved in the decisionmaking process of the contested case shall make or knowingly cause to be made an ex parte communication to any party in a contested case or other person outside the agency having an interest in the contested case.~~

~~002.03 Investigators. No agency head or employee engaged in the investigation or enforcement of a contested case shall make or knowingly cause to be made an ex parte communication to a hearing officer or agency head or employee who is or may reasonably be expected to be involved in the decisionmaking process of the contested case.~~

~~003 Disclosure of contacts. The hearing officer or agency head or employee who is or may reasonably be expected to be involved in the decisionmaking process of the contested case who receives or who makes or knowingly causes to be made an ex parte communication covered by this chapter shall file in the record of the contested case:~~

~~003.01 All such written communications;~~

~~003.02 Memoranda stating the substance of all such oral communications; and~~

~~003.03 All written responses and memoranda stating the substance of all oral responses to all the ex parte communications.~~

~~003.04 The filing shall be made within two working days of the receipt or making of the ex parte communication. Notice of the filing, with an opportunity to respond, shall be given to all parties of record.~~

~~003.05 Filing and notice of filing shall not be considered on the record and reasonable notice for purposes of the definition of ex parte communication.~~

~~Enabling Legislation: Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-909; §84-914.~~

~~Legal Citation: Title 115, Ch. 9, Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality~~

~~NEBRASKA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY~~

~~Title 115 - Rules Of Practice And Procedure~~

~~Chapter 10 - Petition for Rulemaking~~

~~001 Rule Making Petition.~~

~~001.01 Petition. Any person may petition the Council requesting the promulgation, amendment, or repeal of a rule or regulation.~~

~~001.02 Form. The petition shall:~~

~~001.02A Be clearly designated as a petition for a rules change;~~

~~001.02B In the case of a proposed new rule or amendment of an existing rule, shall set forth the desired rule in its entirety;~~

~~001.02C In the case of a petition for the repeal of an existing rule, such shall be stated and the rule proposed to be repealed shall either be set forth in full or shall be referred to by agency rule number;~~

~~001.02D Describe the reason for the rules change.~~

~~001.02E Include an address and telephone where the petitioner can be reached during regular work hours; and~~

~~001.03 Be signed by:~~

~~001.03A The petitioner or his or her attorney in which case the attorney shall also state his or her address and telephone number; or~~

~~001.03B A duly authorized officer of the petitioner, if petitioner is a corporation or other legal entity.~~

~~002 Petition consideration and disposition.~~

~~002.01 Within 60 days after submission of a petition, the Council shall:~~

~~002.01A Deny the petition in writing, stating the reasons therefore; or~~

~~002.01B Initiate rulemaking or regulationmaking proceedings before the Council in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act.~~

~~002.01C If otherwise lawful, adopt a rule or regulation.~~

Enabling Legislation: Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-909; §84-907.08.

Legal Citation: Title 115, Ch. 10, Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality